

CITY OF LAKE FOREST PARK TREE BOARD MEETING

Wednesday, May 01, 2024 at 7:00 PM

Meeting Location: In Person and Virtual / Zoom 17425 Ballinger Way NE Lake Forest Park, WA 98155

INSTRUCTIONS FOR PARTICIPATING IN THIS MEETING VIRTUALLY:

Join Zoom Webinar: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85662201530 Call into Webinar: 253-215-8782 | Webinar ID: 856 6220 1530

The Tree Board is providing opportunities for public comment by joining the meeting webinar (via computer or phone) or in person to provide oral public comment.

HOW TO PARTICIPATE WITH ORAL COMMENTS:

If you are attending in person, there is a sign-in sheet located near the entrance to the room. Fill out the form and the presiding officer will call your name at the appropriate time. Oral comments are limited to 3:00 minutes per speaker.

If you are attending the meeting via Zoom, in order to address the Tree Board during the Public Comment section of the agenda, please use the "raise hand" feature at the bottom of the screen. Oral comments are limited to 3:00 minutes per speaker. Individuals wishing to speak to agenda items will be called to speak first in the order they have signed up. The meeting host will call your name and allow you to speak. Please state your name and whether you are a resident of Lake Forest Park. The meeting is being recorded.

For up-to-date information on agendas, please visit the City's website at www.cityoflfp.gov.

AGENDA

- 1. CALL TO ORDER: 7:00 PM
- 2. SHORT REFLECTION
- 3. INTRODUCTIONS
- 4. ADOPTION OF AGENDA
- 5. APPROVE MINUTES
 - A. April Minutes
- 6. PUBLIC COMMENTS

This portion of the agenda is set aside for the public to address the Tree Board on agenda items. **Comments are limited to a three (3) minute time limit.**

7. COMMUNICATION

8. OLD BUSINESS

- A. Comprehensive Plan Tree Section
- B. Arbor Day Recap
- C. Climate Policy Advisory Team Discussion
- 9. **NEW BUSINESS**
- 10. REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
- 11. AGENDA FOR NEXT MEETING
- 12. ADJOURN

Any person requiring a disability accommodation should contact city hall at 206-368-5440 by 4:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting for more information.

1	City of Lake Forest Park – Tree Board Meeting
2	Normal Meeting Minutes: April 3, 2024; 7:00-9:00pm
3	Hybrid Meeting Held in the Forest Room at City Hall and Virtually via Zoom
4	11y 21.0 11.000.11g 11.01.0 1 01.000 11.001.1 uv 01.0 1 11.00 11.00.11.1 11.00.11.1 11.00.11.1
5 6 7	Tree Board Members present: Doug Sprugel, Mark Phillips, Richard Olmstead, Stacey Spain, Victoria Kutasz,
8 9	Staff and others present: Larry Goldman, LFP City Council; Drue Morris, Urban Forest Planner; Elizabeth Talavera, Assistant Planner, Mark Hofman, Community Development Director
10 11 12 13	Members of the Public present: Elizabeth Ormond, John Brew, Stewardship Foundation, Tom Hazlet
14 15	Tree Board Members absent: No members absent.
16 17	Call to order: 7:00 PM
18 19	Short Reflection: No short reflection was given.
20 21	Introductions: The Board introduced themselves to the public.
22	Approval of Meeting Agenda: No new amendments were proposed. Mr. Phillips motioned to
23 24	approve. Mr. Olmstead seconded. Approved unanimously.
25 26 27	Approval of Minutes: March 2024 minutes – no changes. Mr. Phillips motioned to approve. Mr. Olmstead seconded. The minutes were approved unanimously.
28 29	March 2024 – tabled.
30	Public Comment: Mr. Brew from the Stewardship Foundation voiced an appreciation of the Tree
31 32 33	Board and all their work for the community. Residents, Elizabeth Ormond and Tom Hazlet expressed interest in joining the Tree Board.
34 35	Next meeting: The next regular meeting occurs on Wednesday, May 1, 2024.
36	Communication:
37	Mr. Olmstead discussed the Council Meeting where he presented the Tree Board Work Plan and
38 39	Annual Report.
40 41	Old Business:
42	Changes to General Tree List
43	Chair Sprugel discussed editing the list with the Urban Forest Planner and Board Member
44	Olmstead, specifically trees and species that should be removed from the approved list. Chair
45	Sprugel also discussed the effects of climate change and ensuring the tree list is concurrent with
46	changing times. Chair Sprugel also discussed the importance of the General Tree List and how it
47	aims to help residents during the replanting process with tree permits.

1 Arbor Day 2 Board member Spain discussed the issue of recording the Arbor Day event and drafting a dialogue 3 during the event. John Brew from the Stewardship Foundation mentioned that he can bring his 4 camera, tripod, and some materials. Mr. Olmstead and Mr. Phillips discussed a possible fact sheet to 5 circulate during the event. The Board members discussed the importance of the main topic being 6 the ivy removal of trees to ensure tree health. Member Kutasz mentioned making a sign-in sheet and 7 promotional materials. Member Phillips mentioned bringing a table and bringing coffee. 8 9 **New Business:** 10 11 <u>Comprehensive Plan – Tree Section</u> 12 Mr. Hofman discussed the summary of the Comprehensive Plan regarding trees. The Board went 13 section by section of the memorandum to provide edits and suggestions on verbiage. A main issue 14 the Board discussed was the importance of adding fire prevention to the Comprehensive Plan due to 15 the rising concerns of climate change. 16 Formation of a Climate Policy Advisory Team 17 18 Chair Sprugel gave the floor to Mr. Hofman to lead the discussion on the formation of a Climate 19 Policy advisory team to meet once per month. Mr. Hofman provided information from the grant 20 and how the \$500,000 grant was awarded from the state department of commerce to administer 21 proposal of three members of the Tree Board, Planning Commission, Climate Action Committee, 22 a Council liaison, and two residents to provide an amendment to the comprehensive plan by 23 2025. Board Members Kutasz and Spain volunteered as possible members. The Board agreed 24 that the best route is to create a task force in lieu of adding the item to the Tree Board Work Plan. 25 26 Reports and Announcements: 27 28 Tree Board Member Update 29 Residents, Elizabeth Ormond and Tom Hazlet, expressed interest in joining the Tree Board. 30 31 Councilmember Goldman Update 32 No updates. 33 34 City Staff Update 35 Mr. Hofman provided an update on the Comprehensive Plan survey. Postcards were mailed to all 36 residents of Lake Forest Park with a QR code to the survey. 37 38 **Agenda for Next Meeting:** Chair Sprugel discussed continuing the review of the Comprehensive 39 Plan and a recap of the Arbor Day event for the next meeting. 40 41 **Adjournment:** Meeting adjourned at 9:03 PM 42 43 APPROVED: 44 45

Doug Sprugel, Chair

46

Community Development Director Mark Hofman

17425 Ballinger Way NE Lake Forest Park, WA 98155-5556 Phone: 206-957-2824 Email: mhofman@cityoflfp.gov

www.cityofLFP.gov



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT MEMORANDUM

DATE: April 3, 2024 Meeting

TO: Tree Board, City of Lake Forest Park

FROM: Mark Hofman, AICP, Community Development Director

RE: Existing Tree Narrative, Goals, and Policies- 2015 Comprehensive Plan

The City of Lake Forest Park adopted the current version of the Comprehensive Plan on January 14, 2016, with Ordinance No. 1114. The City is required to complete a periodic update of the Comprehensive Plan by December, 2024. This update is well under way with the Planning Commission and coordination with the other boards, commissions, and committees of the city is required and essential.

In a prior meeting of the Tree Board, staff discussed the periodic update process and the ability for coordination of policies concerning trees. Staff agreed to produce a summary memo listing the tree related narrative, goals, and policies currently in the 2015 Comprehensive Plan. This memo to the Tree Board includes the specific existing portions of the Plan related to trees and would facilitate a discussion as to what may require revision, or the addition of new policies.

For individual review, the current 2015 Comprehensive Plan can be found at:

https://www.cityoflfp.gov/160/2015-Comprehensive-Plan

2015 Comprehensive Plan, Volume I- Introduction and nine chapters, or elements.

In addition to an introduction, the Lake Forest Park 2015 Comprehensive Plan contains nine elements, with goals and policies identified for each element. Each section begins with narrative text, followed by goals and policies. The goals and policies are numbered and labeled below according to their respective elements as currently adopted.

Introduction

Portions of Narrative:

The Lake Forest Park Comprehensive Plan is specifically intended to sustain the attractive residential character and natural environment that are defining features of the city.

Section 8. ItemA.

Defining natural features include the Lake Washington shoreline, the slopes and watercourses that drain to Washington, and the city's extensive forest canopy.

The City had its beginnings as one of the first planned communities in King County and was originally platted in 1910 around natural features and existing terrain. The community was marketed as a residential retreat into nature for professionals of nearby Seattle. In 1961, the area was incorporated as the City of Lake Forest Park when residents united in response to increasing development pressure. Today, preservation of the natural surroundings continues to be an important value in Lake Forest Park.

Adopted in 2008, the Lake Forest Park Legacy 100-Year Vision seeks to preserve unique community resources and strengthen the relationship between the natural and built environments over a 100-year time frame. The Legacy Vision recognizes the City's green infrastructure as an essential element for the community's wellbeing and focuses on strengthening green infrastructure over the long-term future.

Community Forest Management Plan (2010)—The Community Forest Management Plan was adopted to help guide the City's tree regulations and is addressed in the Environmental Quality Element.

Land Use Element

Portions of Narrative:

The Element includes policies that support compatibility with natural features and environmental protection, foster a sense of community, reflect current and historic character, and keep new growth compatible with existing development.

Policy LU–2.1 Ensure that land use policies and regulations reflect the importance of the city's natural environment, tree cover, and Lake Washington shoreline in community identity.

Policy LU–2.5 Provide for a smooth transition between differing land uses through landscape buffers, site and building design measures, or other appropriate techniques.

Goal LU–3 Compatibility with Natural Environment. Promote design and development that respects and preserves the natural environment.

Policy LU–3.1 Encourage the integration of natural landscape in new development by including both natural and compatible ornamental plants, shrubs, and trees.

Policy LU–3.2 Provide design flexibility to preserve or enhance existing site features, including groves of trees, watercourses, slopes, open spaces, and similar assets.

Policy LU-3.3 Recognize and support tree preservation as an integral part of community character.

Policy LU–3.6 Promote the natural drainage and green infrastructure concepts and projects identified in the Legacy 100-Year Vision.

Environmental Quality & Shorelines Element

Portions of Narrative:

Section 8, ItemA.

The Environmental Quality Element Goals and Policies support the City's commitment to preserving and en natural environment. The Element includes policies that provide guidance on balancing environmental protection with development potential and recognizing environmental resources as an essential living infrastructure.

- Goal EQ-1 Compatible Development. Protect the natural environment through zoning and land use decisions.
- Policy EQ-1.1 Protect designated sensitive areas, including ravines, steep slopes, wetlands, and other features.
- Policy EQ–1.3 Preserve native and compatible vegetation whenever appropriate.
- Policy EQ-1.5 Maintain and enhance the integrity of ecosystems.
- Policy EQ-4.2 Promote retention of vegetation and limit land disturbance in identified steep slope and landslide hazard areas.
- Policy EQ-4.3 Protect existing natural areas that provide stormwater storage during flood events.
- Policy EQ-8.1 Encourage the maintenance of native plantings in sensitive area buffers for wildlife when development occurs.
- Policy EQ-8.2 Encourage improvement to contiguous natural wildlife corridors whenever possible.
- Goal EQ–9 Forest Canopy. Preserve, restore, and enhance a healthy and diverse community forest, consisting of both native and compatible non-native species.
- Policy EQ-9.1 Maintain or exceed the minimum citywide canopy cover established by the Municipal Code through regular evaluation and refinement of the City's land use and environmental regulations and policies.
- Policy EQ-9.2 Develop a tree planting, inventory, and maintenance program for public-owned property that takes into consideration the species of trees that will be most successful in environments such as public rights-of-way.
- Policy EQ-9.3 Ensure zoning and subdivision regulations are consistent with the Community Forest Management Plan.
- Policy EQ-9.4 Maintenance of Tree Board to monitor the implementation and effectiveness of the Community Forest Management Plan.
- Policy EQ-9.5 Encourage the study of the potential effects of climate change to native trees and develop strategies to adapt to and/or mitigate the likely effects of climate change to the community forest.
- Policy EQ-9.6 Ensure that all new site development includes an approved tree-replacement plan that achieves canopy coverage goals.
- Policy EQ–9.7 Develop a vigorous program to control invasive plant species such as English ivy, laurel, and holly on public property and encourage their control on private properties.
- Policy EQ-9.8 Continue to balance tree preservation efforts with recognition of private property rights.

Housing Element

Policy H–1.5 Promote residential clustering as a means to protect environmentally sensitive areas and encouraging infill development.

Goal H–2 Neighborhood Character. Preserve and enhance the unique character of the City's residential neighborhoods.

Policy H–2.1 Continue to incorporate site standards, landscaping, and building design guidelines into land use regulations to ensure that infill development complements surrounding uses and the character of Lake Forest Park.

Policy H–2.2 Promote site planning techniques that create quality outdoor spaces and are in harmony with neighboring properties.

Policy H–2.3 Provide guidelines for transitions and buffers around different types of uses, in order to mitigate any negative impacts associated with higher intensity uses.

Economic Development Element

Portions of Narrative:

Lake Forest Park's many amenities, including open space, high quality urban design, green character, and Lake Washington access, are an important economic development asset and the element provides guidance for preservation and enhancement of these amenities.

Goal ED-5 Recognize and promote Lake Forest Park's character and amenities as an economic development asset.

Policy ED–5.2 Recognize and emphasize the urban amenities in Lake Forest Park, including open space and recreational facilities, high quality urban design, green character, and community events, as important elements in the city's economic development strategy.

- Connect recreational and open space areas to commercial centers.
- Improve visibility and access to Lake Washington.
- Expand pedestrian and bicycle routes to commercial centers and nodes.
- Preserve the city's tree canopy and green character.
- Encourage high quality design.

Policy ED–6.3 Ensure that regulations support economic growth while continuing to preserve the environment, community aesthetics, and residential quality of life.

Community Services & Public Safety Element

Fire Prevention

Capital Facilities Element

N/A

Parks, Trails, & Open Space Element

Portions of Narrative:

The Parks, Trails, and Open Space Element Goals and Policies support the City's commitment to developing and maintaining an exceptional park and trail system that provides diverse recreational opportunities in addition to preserving environmentally sensitive areas and forested and habitat areas. The Element includes policies that provide guidance on park maintenance, funding strategies, and tie-ins to the Legacy 100-Year Vision.

Policy PT–1.4 Implement and monitor the necessary restoration and preservation plans for riparian and sensitive area open spaces in the City's parks.

Goal PT–4 Environmental Protection. Protect environmentally sensitive areas, wildlife habitats, and wooded areas to provide relief from urban development.

Policy PT–4.1 In situations where regulatory measures are not effective, seek funding for open space acquisition which preserves the city's watersheds, environmentally sensitive areas, wildlife corridors, fish and amphibian habitat, and wooded areas.

Policy PT-4.3 Use the city's parks, trails, and open spaces to provide information and education about natural systems.

Policy PT-4.5 Remove invasive species in parks, trails, and open spaces.

Utilities Element

Policy U–4.6 Work with electric utilities to encourage tree removal when topping is otherwise required for maintaining power lines, and ensure that trees are replaced with location-appropriate species.

Transportation Element	
N/A	

2015 Comprehensive Plan, Volume II, Background Analysis

Volume II contains background information that supports the goals and policies in Volume I. The Planning Commission reviewed this information during the process of updating the Comprehensive Plan in order to ensure that the goals and policies reflect current conditions in the community, are consistent with current state and regional policy frameworks, and are based on best available information.

Background Analysis-Introduction

N/A

Background Analysis- Land Use

N/A

Background Analysis- Environmental Quality & Shorelines

Portions of Narrative:

The natural environment of Lake Forest Park is an important part of the daily lives of its citizens. From the very beginning, our City's natural environment has been its defining characteristic. An early land prospectus for the new City of Lake Forest Park stated, "The strict fiat has gone forth that all the natural beauty must be preserved." Our city was named for its close proximity to Lake Washington, abundance of streams, ravines, and wetlands, and its robust tree canopy. The need not only to protect but also to enhance the natural environment and wildlife inhabitants of Lake Forest Park extends far beyond its aesthetic beauty, however. The ecosystem and green infrastructure that the natural environment provides create economic and health benefits for the citizens of our community.

A number of strategic and specific-issue plans have been developed to address environmental needs throughout the city, and these have contributed to the development of the Environmental Quality and Shorelines goals and policies. These plans, and their relation to this element, are described below. They include:

- City of Lake Forest Park Legacy 100-Year Vision
- City of Lake Forest Park Community Forest Management Plan
- City of Lake Forest Park Wildlife Management Plan
- City of Lake Forest Park Shoreline Master Program

Lake Forest Park Community Forest Management Plan (2010)

The Community Forest Management Plan was drafted by the Urban Forest Task Force and adopted by reference by Ordinance 1015: Tree Canopy Preservation and Enhancement. The Plan's purpose is to guide enhancement to Lake Forest Park's tree canopy by identifying tree canopy goals, asset management strategies, and policies for promoting education on forestry issues. The plan was used to inform an update of the City's tree regulations, and acts as a supporting document for all future updates to LFPMC 16.14—Tree Preservation and Enhancement.

Lake Forest Park's forest canopy is one of its defining characteristics, and is also a vital community resource. The amount of tree canopy coverage in a community is one of the most useful benchmarks of urban environmental quality. In 2009, Lake Forest Park undertook a survey of tree canopy coverage, the results of which are shown in Figure II.4.

Figure II.4 Lake Forest Park tree canopy coverage by parcel. Page 111

The Community Forest Management Plan states that the benefits of trees include:

- Reducing surface water runoff (keeping pollution out of the rivers and ponds)
- Reducing soil erosion (decreasing sedimentation of water bodies and preventing landslides)
- Absorbing air pollutants and sequestering carbon dioxide (countering the greenhouse effect)
- Reducing noise pollution
- Cooling the city by absorbing sunlight and releasing water through evapotranspiration
- Creating wildlife habitat
- Conserving energy by providing temperature moderation
- Improving water quality

Section 8. ItemA.

Citizen Volunteers

Background Analysis, Housing

The natural environment of Lake Forest Park benefits from the many residents who are deeply passionate about protecting and enhancing it. These volunteer commissioners, tree board members and non-profit members collaborate with the City regularly on projects and plans that embrace the city's shoreline, streams, forests, and wildlife habitat.

The Lake Forest Park Stewardship Foundation, a community-run non-profit, was formed in 1998 and has worked tirelessly since that point to increase education and awareness of Lake Forest Park's natural resources. Members of the Foundation have contributed to many community plans in the past, and have been an integral part in developing the Environmental Quality and Shorelines goals and policies.

background Analysis- Housing			
N/A			
Background Analysis- Economic Development			
N/A			
Background Analysis- Community Services & Public Safety			
N/A			
Background Analysis- Capital Facilities			
N/A			

Background Analysis- Parks, Trails & Open Space

Portions of Narrative:

Though Lake Forest Park's large lots and extensive tree canopy give the city a park-like quality, there are also a number of designated parks, open spaces and recreational facilities within the community. These spaces allow for both passive and active recreation. In Lake Forest Park one can go on a nature hike, visit a playground, bicycle, or simply sit and enjoy the view of majestic Mt. Rainer across Lake Washington. These parks and open spaces are an asset to the community that provides enjoyment, health benefits, and increased property values. The City intends to increase both the quality and quantity of parks and open space available to the community.

Background Analysis- Utilities				
N/A				
Background Analysis- Transportation				
N/A				